Reo.rf

Nicholson House
Queen St., Chestertown
c. 1788

John Nicholson, son of Joseph Nicholson, Sr., had been active in the
War for Independence, rising to the position of Captain in the Continental
Navy. After the war, upon his return to Kent County, he became Register of
Wills and resided in Chestertown before moving to Baltimore County in
1801.

In 1788 John Nicholson purchased part of lot No. 25 from Thomas
Smyth for the sum of @137 and soon thereafter improved it with the
construction of a large townhouse.l Like its nearby neighbor the Geddes-
Piper House, the house was of a tall design allowing for room in the
basement for the kitchen. The floor plan was also the same as the Geddes-

Piper House, only in reverse, and on a larger scale.

For the three bay facade, Nicholson chose common bond, with cove
water table. It lacked a belt course and decorative window heads above the
large 12/12 sash. The single decorative feature of the facade was its cornice.
Molded brick was used to imitate crown and facia, beneath which was a row
of brick dentils, supported on a cove molding. Short cornice returns
wrapped around the gables. The Nicholson House and its neighbor the
Chambers Tenement possessed the earliest examples of brick cornice work

in Kent County. They are the only such examples to use molded brick.

Its interior was well finished with baseboard, chair rail and cornice.

The two parlors have dentil cornices similar to rooms in River House, Dunn
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House and the Buck-Chambers House. Many of the window and door

openings are trimmed with double crossetted trim.

After John Nicholson departed for Baltimore County, he sold his
residence to Margaret Forman, mother of Elizabeth Chambers her
neighbor, and widow of Ezekial Forman, earlier Clerk of the Court.2 In
1802, Mrs. Forman sold twenty five feet of her lot to her neighbor James
Houston and in 1808 she sold another portion to her son-in-law Benjamin
Chambers for a stable.3 At that time she was living in Cecil County. When
she finally sold her house in 1820, she was in fact living in Adams County,
Mississippi. The following year Mrs. Forman’s granddaughter, Elizabeth
Chambers Wickes repurchased the house and resided there with her

husband Joseph until they acquired the Wickes House in 1828.4

It was possibly during the Wickes tenure that the facade was
improved by the addition of wooden lintels with corner blocks over all of
the openings. Inside, large double doors between parlors were installed,

creating, when needed, a huge double room.

In 1841 the lot was owned and occupied by Joseph N. Gordon, Clerk
of the Court. In the Tax Assessment, the house and lot were assessed for

$1,600.

On the Map of Chestertown in the 1877 Atlas, the house is drawn
without additions. Apparently, it was not until the 1890’s that the two story
brick wing with matching brick cornice was constructed off the back of the

stairhall. The wing included a dining room and kitchen which moved the
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location of the latter from the basement. Charles T. and Mary Westcott
were responsible for the addition. The addition was constructed with a

round corner and a cornia to match the original section.

Since 1900, the house has seen nine owners. Many alterations have
been made during this century, most of which have occurred during the past

ten years.

1. Land Records, Lib. EF 7, fol. 286.
Land Records, Lib. TW 2, fol. 97.

Land Records, Lib. BC 5, fol. 374.
Land Records, Lib. WS 3, fol. 425.
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Jhe Nicholson houre is one of a cluaten O{L&m and contempomany
brick Jederal #tyle townhouses on lowee Queen Sineet, John /W.lcﬁoao.q had the
houne built aoon after 1788, the year he bought the property from local menchant/
ahipbuilder, Jhoman Smyth. 0f particular interest ia }&n&u’.e nineteenth century

Victonian wing with ita cunved front connen. The

i
John Nicholson is remembered for his'$portant career in the Contiénental
Na AVY »
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE .
XexceLient —_DETERIORATED _UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GOO0D —RUINS X ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

111 Queen Street is located on the southeast side of Queen Street between Church
and High Streets in Chestertown. It is situated on a part of Town Lot 25, Its
main wing is similar to those of 113 and 109, its neighbaors on either side.

It is a 2%-3‘00}:‘:{, 3-bays squars brick Federgl style town house with a steep
"A" poof and two gabled dormers. The entrance is in the northeast (left)
bay. There is a molded water table across the front., The brickwork is laid
in common bond and has been whitewashed.

The door sits on a high brick sttop with an iron rail across the front and is
ascended from either side up fivebrick steps, The door is 6-paneled and is
framed by plain narrow pllasters and full length louvered shuttees. Above is
a li-pane transom and a large wood lintel,

Al11 five windows on the facade are double hung sash 12/12 with large wood
lintels that match that over the door., The sills are wood. All have louvered

shutters.
The main cornice is shallow and has dentils. There is a vety short return
along the gable ends. The roof does not overhang the gables. It is covered .

with composition shingles., There is one large chimney, flush with the southeast
(right) gable end.

There are three windows on the first and seeond stories of the southsast gable
end and all are 9/9; the center windows are set slightly off-center to the front,
The first story windows have flat brick arches, All have louvered shutters.
There is a small windows in the gable.

There is one 12/12 window in the front bay of the northeast gable end, two on
the secmns story, and two small §/6 attic windows set in the gable,

A 2-story wing, one bay wide by two bays deep, with a hipped roof has been built
out from the rear bay of the northeast gable end; it overlaps the rear bay and
extends on past the rear wall of the house. Its outside front corner has been
curved. The cornice of the wing repeats the dentils on the main structure's
cornice, There are paired 1/1 sash windows with flat brick arches on each

story of the facade and two 2/2 sash windows on each stéry of the side elevation,

There are two frame porches added to the rear of the main sectioh,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




1 SIGNIFICANCE K-210

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW . SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 EAHCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
._x..'l 700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
—1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER ISPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES late 1780's BUILDER/ARCHITECT unknown

. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house is the central dwelling in a three house cluster of Federal style
townhouses, all very similar to one another when their main wings are compared
. and, apparently, all contemporary with one another,

John Nicholson bought the piece of Town Lot 25 the house is on in 1788 for

E137 from Thomas Smyth, builder of Widehall, who was a wealthy local merohant,

shipbuilder, and buyer and seller of real estate. This particular transaction

was part of Smyth's breaking up of a large pareel of real estate he bought fram

Emory Sudler in 1785, which included the northeast half of Lot 3l with both

116 High Street and 103 Queen Street on it, and all of the adjacent lot, No. 25,
. as far north as 113 Queen Street,

As far aswe know the piece that Nicholson bought from Smyth was undeveloped;
it extended from the 113 Queen Street property line to the alley that divides
it from 109 Queen, We assume 111 was built soon afterward. Nicholson sold the
property to Margaret Forman in 1801 for E325,

The wing on the house was built in the 1890's,

see attached sheet

To—te—ammenced,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES &=

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Attached,

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY .

STATE COUNTY

E!IFC“RBGI“QEPV&RIH)IFY

NAME / TITLE

Robert Neill Historic Sits Surveyor -

ORGANIZATION DATE

Maryland Historizal Trust / Town of Chestertown May, 1976

STREET & NUMBER " TELEPHONE

CITY OR TOWN STATE

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. .

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PS- 1108







K-310
Verbal Boundary Description for 111 Queen Street

I. Part of Town Lot 25, having a frontage of Shi feet on Queen Street and a depth of
123 fedt southeasterly from Queﬁn Street, together with the stable lot at the back
of sald 1ot, having a length of 16 fest and a breadth of 14} fest, with a right of
way to and frqm gsaid stable lot through and over the 12 foot alley to Queen Street,

II. A1l that lot of zround adjoining the above named stable lot on the east side of the
12 foot alley, beginning 102 feet, 8 inches southeasterly from the south corner of

the brick residence on the above lot and running southeasterly along said alley 19
faet, 7 inches to the rectory stable lot, thence northeasterly at right angles 22 feet
1N inches, thence at right anples southwesterly 22 feet, 10 inches to the beginning
with the common use of the way over said 12 foot alley,

III. A1l that parcel of ground adjoining II and described as follows: Running in a
southeasterly direction along said 12 foot right of way 39 feet to the property

osned by J.B. Metcalfe; thence northeasterly along said Metcalfs line [l feet, L

inches; thence in a northwesterly direction 17 feet to a point; thence in a northeasterly
direction 34 PPet, 8 inches to the property of or farmerly of Dr, H.G. Simpers, thence
with the smid Sidpers land 61} feet; thence in a southeasterly direction 16 fest to Lot

IT above; thence with the line of Lot II to the point of beginning.
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Title Search on 111 Queen Street

George William Forrester, Jr. to Emory Sudler DD 4 25 (1772) &70
(Lot 25 from Lot 34 line to 113 Queen Street)

Embry Sudler to Thomas Smyth EF 6 487 (1785) 52998 -M.C'{’
(Northeast half of Lot 3L, except for small piece fromting on High
Street and bordering on Southeast half of 3li, and Lot 28 from Lot 3k
line to 113 Queen Street)

Thomas Smyth to John Nicholson EF 7 286 (1788) %.37
(kmk Piece of Dot 25 from 113 Queen Street line to ally)- This deed includes note that
113 Queen Street has been
John Nicholson to Marcaret Forman TW 2 97 (1801) %325 built.,

Margaret Forman to Thomas Worrell WS 3 238 (1820) 31250
(She sold off 2§ foot piece to James Houston of 113 Queen adjoining
in 1802) .
Thomas Worrell to Elizabeth Wickes WS 3 L425 (1821) $1800

Joseph and Elizabeth Wickes to Edward Freeman JNG 2 1,98 (1831) $2500

Ehmrtesritidgedyy
Etc.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFOKMATION AND PHOT"SRAPHS MAY GE ADDED ON SHEET OF SAME SIZE

-
1. STATE Maryland HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SUREEY
COUNTY Kent County INVEMTORY - “
TOWN VICINITY
streeTno. LIl Queen Street, 2nane M ( Queen Mae b —
Chestertown 1788
oricinaL ownerJohn Nicholson BATE OR.PERIGD 7
oricinaLuse Dwelling SLYZiTCT Federal - townhouse
presenT owner CAPT & Mrs, H.Der&gﬂeq A ICDIER Soka ickal
present use  Dwel ling ol onk Nichoison
wALL consTRucTioN Brick 3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE
NO. OF STORIES 2=-1/2
4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPEN TO PUBLIC NO
———

Number |1l Jueen Street is a 2-1/2 story brick house, three
bays long and two rooms deep., The entrance door is on the
east end of the facade and has a panelled soffit, a transom
and louvered shutters. It stands on a high basewment and
there is a molded water~table. The brick on the facade is
laid in Flemish bond., The dentil cornice is of molded brick
and returns upon itself at the corners. The windows have
applied wood lintels and 12 over |2 sash. There are louvered
shutters throughout, Un the west gable is the large narrow
chimney which serves the two fireplaces on each fFloor. There
are two pedimented dormers on the roof with 0 over 0 sash,

On the east corner of the house a nineteenth century wing
was attached which has one rounded corner, Here a cornice,
similar to that of the main house, has been used. This
wing is now used as the dining room. The interior is
finished with trim of the period.

Condition: Good

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF ETRUCTURE Endangered Interior Exterior
| Bow
fga | Color
4. LOCATION MAP (Plon Optional) 7. PHOTOGRAPH
3. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages) . NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER

INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC.

Michael 0. Bourne
Maryland Historical Trust

February 8, 1968

DATE OF RECCRD




JL._U STREET

gy

) i
PENNSYLVANIA
g
r-u.
Lr-

4 TWILLEY |
) LANE
'y ! Queen | |
’r




0]

N

—00—J (@

9-—"‘-_:_

.........




-

T3

?@..»7 tdea >,) 7 ¢ (/m  JUT o

c \’\QSJ\‘Q_v &om

K-310

R
|5

7
34
-

11 |
I
|
J

= 5 s
"'* I' ;

b =

u s _.ré+.an

N vower smerr aesreromn wp
.

/m? N.Queens+.K-13g
o9 N, Queen ST K-26

“( N Quuanm SE. =K =30
‘ .’.’QN G wimn S'f'

D N-Bwoam Sk« & 23

K-27

el wv. Gi-ueen sr. K-340




K-310

. Nicholson House
111 Queen St.
Chestertown
Chestertown Quad.
Kent County
















